
 

          

 

THOUSAND OAKS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The Thousand Oaks Community Development District is a special purpose unit of local government created 
under Florida Law, chapter 190, for the purpose of financing, constructing, operating, and maintaining 

community-wide infrastructure, improvements, and services for the benefit of the properties within its boundaries. 

 
PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 13, 2023 
4:15 P.M. 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.thousandoakscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Thousand Oaks HOA Office 
1034 Center Stone Lane 

Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

February 13, 2023 
4:15 p.m. 

 
 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1  

C. Moment of Silence 

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

G. Approval of Minutes  

1. January 9, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes……………………………...............................Page 3 

H. Old Business 

1. Update on Funds Owed to the HOA Regarding Fence-Line Tree Trimming 

2. Update on ATV Purchase or Rental  

3. Update on Newsletter and Website 

4. Update on Regarding District Investment Policy 

5. Update on Fountain Installation 

6. Update on Stormwater Drainage Cleaning  

7. Discussion Regarding Encroachment Issue 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Approving Enrolling in FLCLASS………………………….Page 6 

2. Discussion Regarding Next Step’s for Thousand Oaks New Logo………………………………..Page 92 

3. Consider Approval of Proposal for Villa Rosa Mulch……………………………………………..Page 93  

4. Consider Approval of Proposal for Villa Rosa Fountain Repair…………………………………..Page 94 

J. Administrative Matters 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 1 of 3 
 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JANUARY 9, 2023 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The January 9, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Thousand Oaks Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 4:16 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks HOA Office located at 1034 Center Stone 
Lane, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in The 
Palm Beach Post on September 19, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Regular Board 
Meeting, as legally required.  
 
C. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
D. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established by the presence of Chairman Jeff Jackson (via phone), Vice Chairman Rance 
Gaede and Supervisors Malachi Knowles, Horace Towns and Corey Smith. 
  
Staff present included District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; District Counsel 
Frank Palen of Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP; and District Engineer Jeff Schnars of 
Schnars Engineering Corporation. 
 
Also present were:  Rene O’Day of FLCLASS (via phone); and Monika Pugh, a Villa Rosa resident.  
 
E. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Gaede suggested rearranging the agenda as follows… move Old Business #7 to Old Business #1, 
combine Old Business #5 with New Business #1 and move this up to #2.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Towns and unanimously passed approving the 
reorganization of the agenda. 
 
F. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Pugh introduced herself as a Villa Rosa resident and stated that she wanted to see what the CDD Board 
was about, the topics of discussion and would like to assist the Board, if needed.  
 
G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  December 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Towns and passed unanimously approving the 
December 12, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 

Page 3



Page 2 of 3 
 

H. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on Logos for Shirts 
 
Ms. Bethel advised that Mr. Towns had sent her the images for the Board to review as a handout. The Board 
discussed the options presented and voted on number 5. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Smit, and unanimously passed approving image 
number 5. 
 
The Board would like to add the logo to the next meeting agenda package. 
 

2.  Update on Funds Owed to HOA Regarding Fence Line Tree Trimming 
 
Mr. Jackson requested that this item be held until the next meeting. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding ATV Purchase or Rental 
 
Mr. Jackson requested that this item be held until the next meeting. 
 
 4.  Update on Newsletter and Website 
 
Mr. Jackson requested that this item be held until the next meeting. 
 
 5.  Discussion Regarding District Investment Policy 
 
This item was combined with New Business #1. 
 
 6.  Update on Fountain Installation 
 
Ms. Bethel indicated that the permit was issued for the electrical work and the vendor would start on the 
fountain that has existing electric.  
 
Mr. Knowles stated that the southern fountain lights were out.  Ms. Bethel will notify the vendor.  
 
 7.  Consider Proline Vactor Services for Stormwater Drainage Cleaning 
 
Mr. Schnars stated the annual inspection was to identify issues and they identified drainage issues. Mr. 
Schnars went over each proposal and recommended Proline.  He stated that Mr. Meloy would monitor the 
work and inspect it once it was completed.  Mr. Palen stated that before any work could begin, the District 
should issue a Notice to Proceed.  Mr. Towns recommended adding several thousand dollars to the approved 
price as a contingency and Mr. Schnars agreed.  Mr. Palen suggested a percentage of the total cost.  Mr. 
Jackson suggested 15%.  Mr. Schnars stated the curb repairs were from a different company, which he 
recommended.  It is a great bid in his opinion.  He recommended adding a contingency to this proposal as 
well.  Mr. Towns suggested the Board move for approval.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Knowles and unanimously passed approving the 
proposals of Proline Vactor Services in the amount of $6,727.50 (Villa Rosa/Sierra Bay) and $17,267.50 
(Thousand Oaks), with a 15% contingency;  and Statewide Grading, LLC in the amount of $49,500.00 
(Thousand Oaks) & $22,00.00 (Sierra Bay) with a 15% contingency. 

Page 4



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 8.  Discussion Regarding Encroachment Issue 
 
Mr. Palen advised that at the last meeting he was directed to draft a letter, which is on Page 17, for the board 
to review.  However, during his research, it was difficult to identify if the clutter was actually located on 
CDD property.  He referred to Page 22 in the meeting book. A lengthy discussion ensued. Mr. Jackson 
asked if Ms. Bethel had received the survey and she stated she had not.  Mr. Jackson suggested the Board 
table this item until everyone can review the survey and the Board agreed.  
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding Investment Options with FL-CLASS 
 
Ms. O’Day introduced herself and went over FL CLASS history, products and interest rates. A lengthy 
discussion ensued.  Ms. Bethel stated the Gehring Group, who had been invited to attend, specialized in 
risk management rather than financial advising. Mr. Palen confirmed this.  Mr. Palen reviewed the 
investment options available to the District, pursuant to Section 218.415, F.S.  One of them is to enter into 
an interlocal agreement with a State-certified investment pool, such as FL CLASS.  If the District joined 
FL CLASS, it would not need to adopt an investment policy.  Mr. Knowles would like for Mr. Jackson to 
be present before a decision regarding this item is made.  Mr. Gaede and Mr. Towns expressed their interest 
in moving forward with a decision. The Board decided to defer discussion until the February meeting.  
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
  
Ms. Bethel asked Mr. Smith to submit his paperwork. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m.  There 
were no objections. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 5



[23‐0127]  1 
 

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
Frank S. Palen, Esq. 
Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP 
1555 Palm Beach Lakes Boulevard, Suite 1200 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING FOR ENTRANCE INTO AN INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT WITH OTHER GOVERNMENTAL 
PARTICIPANTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF EXERCISING 
INVESTMENT POWER JOINTLY TO INVEST FUNDS IN 
CONCERT WITH OTHER PARTICIPANTS; PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the Thousand Oaks Community Development District  is permitted and has the 
power pursuant to the provisions of the Florida Statutes, including but not limited to Section 218.415 of the 
Florida Statutes, and Section 190.011 of the Florida Statutes. to invest certain of its funds in statutorily 
permitted investments including but not limited to any intergovernmental investment pool authorized 
pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, as amended (the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act); and  

WHEREAS, Sec. 163.01, Fla. Stat., authorizes a political subdivision, agency, or officer of the 
State of Florida including but not limited to state government, county, city, school district, single and 
multipurpose special district, single and multi-purpose public authority, metropolitan or consolidated 
government, a separate legal entity or administrative entity created under subsection (7) of Section 163.01, 
Fla. Stat., or an independently elected county officer (each of the foregoing a Local Government Entity or 
Entity), to exercise jointly with any other Entity any power, privilege, or authority which such Entities share 
in common and which each might exercise separately; and  

WHEREAS, the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act authorizes the Thousand Oaks Community 
Development District, together with other local governmental entities, to exercise jointly any power, 
privilege or authority which the local governmental entities share in common and which each might exercise 
separately pursuant to a written interlocal agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, Palm Beach County Clerk and Comptroller, the Pinellas County Clerk of the Court 
and Comptroller, and Orange County Tax Collector, as initial Participants (as such term is defined in the 
Interlocal Agreement described below), entered into that certain Interlocal Agreement, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A (the Interlocal Agreement), the purpose of which is to provide the Thousand 
Oaks Community Development District  and each Participant which has executed or otherwise joined the 
Interlocal Agreement, a substantial benefit by establishing the intergovernmental investment pool to be 
known as the Florida Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (FLCLASS), which is an 
intergovernmental investment pool as described in Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, as amended, in order 
to exercise such investment power jointly and invest such funds in concert with the other Participants 
pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement as authorized by the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act in order to 
take advantage of economies of scale and perform governmental functions more efficiently; and  

Page 6



[23‐0127]  2 
 

WHEREAS, the Thousand Oaks Community Development District  desires to join the Interlocal 
Agreement as a Participant, in order to exercise investment power jointly and invest funds in concert with 
the other Participants pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement in order to take advantage of economies of scale 
and perform governmental functions more efficiently; and  

WHEREAS, the policy of the Interlocal Agreement shall be to place the highest priority on the 
safety of principal and liquidity of funds, and the optimization of investment returns shall be secondary to 
the requirements for safety and liquidity;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Thousand Oaks 
Community Development District  as follows:  

SECTION 1. The Interlocal Agreement executed or otherwise joined by the Participants thereto, a 
copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.  

SECTION 2. Pursuant to Section 2.4 of the Interlocal Agreement, the Thousand Oaks Community 
Development District  hereby joins the Interlocal Agreement as a Participant and agrees to be bound by all 
of the terms and provisions thereof. The Thousand Oaks Community Development District  further agrees 
to file an executed copy of this Resolution with the Clerk of Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida.  

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its filing with the Clerk of Court 
in and for Palm Beach County, Florida.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED IN PUBLIC SESSION of the Board of Supervisors of the Thousand 
Oaks Community Development District  this 13th day of February, 2023. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Name Signed 

 

  

Name Printed 

_________ SECRETARY 

 

[DISTRICT SEAL] 

 

 

 

BY: ______________________________ 
 Jeffrey Jackson 
 

ITS: Chair

 

  

Page 7



[23‐0127]  3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

FLCLASS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

MARCH 4, 2021 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



From: JOHN RUSS <john_a_russ@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 25, 2023 2:45 PM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: revised Re mulching propopsal 
 
Russ Total Lawn Maintenance L.L.C. 
1731 Ave F. 
 Riviera Beach Fl. 33404 
John Russ  
 
Thousand Oaks CDD, 
The following is a proposal for the re mulching project along Congress of the Villa 
Rosa Neighborhood in Riviera Beach. If you should have any questions please do not hesitate to 
contact me at:  (561) 319-7110.  
 
Mulching Proposal Introduction 
 
This document proposes that Russ Total Lawn Maintenance will perform the necessary maintenance 
in an effort to maintain the beauty of the property. The goal is to maintain a conspicuous landscape 
for residents and visitors. 
R.T.L.M. will be responsible for the following deliverables. 

 
Deliverables  
 
R.T.L.M. will be responsible for the following deliverables 

 Apply 10 pallets of Red Mulch throughout the bedded areas  
 Dispose of any generated debris 

Compensation 
 
Our complete price for this project base on the deliverables outlined is: $4,550.00. If approved 
we would like request $2,275 in advance and $2275.00 upon completion. 

Thanks again for allowing Russ Total Lawn Maintenance to submit this proposal. Our 
company is small enough to give your property the attention it deserves and yet we are 
large enough to handle the equipment and labor necessary to do the job right and on 
time. 
 

Page 93



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL 
FOR VILLA ROSA FOUNTAIN REPAIR 

 
TO BE DISTRIBUTED  

UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 94


	Thousand Oaks Community Development District - February 13, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	January 9, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Approving Enrolling in FLCLASS
	Discussion Regarding Next Step’s for Thousand Oaks New Logo
	Consider Approval of Proposal for Villa Rosa Mulch
	Consider Approval of Proposal for Villa Rosa Fountain Repair




